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IN THE MATTER OF

T&N PLC

MODIFYING ORDER IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC.7 OF THE CLAYTON ACT AND SEC. 5 OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3312. Consent Order, Nov. 8, 1990--Modifying Order, April 23, 1996

This order reopens a 1990 consent order -- that permitted the Manchester, England,
corporation to acquire J.P. Industries, Inc., and required the respondent, for ten
years, to obtain Commission approval before acquiring any engine bearing
assets in the United States -- and this order modifies the consent order by
terminating the provision requiring T&N to obtain prior Commission approval.

ORDER REOPENING AND MODIFYING ORDER

On January 4, 1996, T&N plc ("T&N" or "respondent"), the
respondent named in the consent order issued by the Commission on
November 8, 1990, in Docket No. C-3312 ("order"), filed its Request
to Vacate Prior Approval Provision ("Request") in this matter.! T&N
asks that the Commission reopen and modify the order pursuant to
Section 5(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45(b),
and Section 2.51 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and
Procedure, 16 CFR 2.51, and consistent with the Statement of Federal
Trade Commission Policy Concerning Prior Approval And Prior
" Notice Provisions, issued on June 21, 1995 ("Prior Approval Policy
Statement" or "Statement").”> Paragraph XI of the order requires
T&N to seek prior Commission approval to acquire certain entities
engaged in the design, manufacture or sale in or to the United States
of engine bearings. T&N requests that the Commission reopen and
modify the order to vacate the prior approval provision of paragraph
XI of the order, or, in the alternative, to substitute a prior notice
provision for the prior approval provision of paragraph XI.> The
thirty-day public comment period on T&N's Request expired on
February 26, 1996. No comments were received.

1 . . . . .
T&N is a United Kingdom corporation that manufactures and sells automotive components,
including thinwall engine bearings for sale in the United States aftermarket.

2 60 Fed. Reg. 39745-47 (Aug. 3, 1995); 4 Trade Reg. Rep. (CCH) ] 13,241.
Request at 1.
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The Commission, in its Prior Approval Policy Statement,
"concluded that a general policy of requiring prior approval is no
longer needed,” citing the availability of the premerger notification
and waiting period requirements of Section 7A of the Clayton Act,
commonly referred to as the Hart-Scott-Rodino ("HSR") Act, 15
U.S.C. 18a, to protect the public interest in effective merger law
enforcement. Prior Approval Policy Statement at 2. The Commission
announced that it will "henceforth rely on the HSR process as its
principal means of learning about and reviewing mergers by
companies as to which the Commission had previously found a
reason to believe that the companies had engaged or attempted to
engage in an illegal merger.” As a general matter, "Commission
orders in such cases will not include prior approval or prior
notification requirements." /d.

The Commission stated that it will continue to fashion remedies
as needed in the public interest, including ordering narrow prior
approval or prior notification requirements in certain limited
circumstances. The Commission said in its Prior Approval Policy
Statement that "a narrow prior approval provision may be used where
there is a credible risk that a company that engaged or attempted to
engage in an anticompetitive merger would, but for the provision,
attempt the same or approximately the same merger." The
Commission also said that "a narrow prior notification provision may
be used where there is a credible risk that a company that engaged or
attempted to engage in an anticompetitive merger would, but for an
order, engage in an otherwise unreportable anticompetitive merger."
Id. at 3. As explained in the Prior Approval Policy Statement, the
need for a prior notification requirement will depend on
circumstances such as the structural characteristics of the relevant
markets, the size and other characteristics of the market participants,
and other relevant factors.

The Commission also announced, in its Prior Approval Policy
Statement, its intention "to initiate a process for reviewing the
retention or modification of these existing requirements" and invited
respondents subject to such requirements "to submit a request to
reopen the order.” /d. at 4. The Commission determined that, "when
a petition is filed to reopen and modify an order pursuant to . . . [the
Prior Approval Policy Statement], the Commission will apply a
rebuttable presumption that the public interest requires reopening of
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the order and modification of the prior approval requirement
consistent with the policy announced" in the Statement. Id.

The presumption is that setting aside the prior approval
requirement in this order is in the public interest. Nothing to
overcome the presumption has been presented, and nothing in the
record suggests that the respondent would engage in the same
acquisition as alleged in the complaint.  Accordingly, the
Commission has determined to reopen the proceedings and modify
the order to set aside the prior approval requirement.

The record in this case shows a credible risk that respondent
could engage in future anticompetitive acquisitions that would not be
reportable under the HSR Act. The complaint in this matter
("complaint") alleged that T&N's acquisition of J. P. Industries Inc.
("JPI") would substantially lessen competition within the United
States in the manufacture and sale of thinwall engine bearings and tri-
metal heavywall engine bearings in violation of Section 7 of the
Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45. The relevant geographic market is
United States.

The complaint alleged that a substantial lessening of competition
would result from the elimination of actual competition in the
relevant markets; the enhancement of the likelihood of collusion or
interdependent coordination between or among firms in the relevant
markets; the elimination of potential competition in the relevant
markets; and the elimination of JPI as a substantial independent
competitive force.

There has been no showing that the competitive conditions that
gave rise to the complaint and the order no longer exist. Moreover,
the size of relevant transactions indicates that future acquisitions that
would currently be covered by the provisions of paragraph XI of the
order might not be subject to the premerger notification and waiting
period requirements of the HSR Act.* Accordingly, pursuant to the
Prior Approval Policy Statement, the Commission has determined to
modify paragraph XI of the order to substitute a prior notification
requirement for the prior approval requirement.

Accordingly, It is ordered, That this matter be, and it hereby is,
reopened; and

4 . . .
The divestitures made pursuant to the order were for prices well below the HSR filing thresholds.
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It is further ordered, That paragraph XI of the order be, and it
hereby is, modified, as of the effective date of this order, to read as
follows:

XL

It is further ordered, That, for a period of ten (10) years from the
date on which this order becomes final, T&N shall not, directly or
indirectly, acquire any stock, share capital, assets or equity interest
in any concern, corporate or non-corporate, engaged in the design,
manufacture or sale in or to the United States of any engine bearings
without Prior Notification to the Commission, if such concern:

A. Is incorporated in one of the United States or organized under
the laws of the United States or has its principal offices within the
United States; or

B. At the time of the acquisition designs or manufactures plain
engine bearings in the United States; or

C. Had net sales of thinwall plain engine bearings in or to the
United States of one and one-half (1.5) million dollars or more in any
of the three (3) calendar years preceding the date of the acquisition,
or had net sales of tri-metal heavywall engine bearings in or to the
United States of three hundred thousand (300,000) dollars or more in
any of the three (3) calendar years preceding the date of the
acquisition.

Provided, however, that nothing in this paragraph shall prohibit T&N
from acquiring used machinery or equipment associated with or
related to the manufacture of plain engine bearings from an entity that
continues, to substantially the same extent as before the acquisition,
in the business of manufacturing such bearings and selling them in or
to the United States; and provided, further, that nothing in this
paragraph shall prohibit T&N from purchasing from any such entity
any plain engine bearings for resale in the United States in the
ordinary course of business.

On the anniversary of the date on which this order becomes final,
and on every anniversary thereafter for the following nine (9) years,
T&N shall file with the Commission a verified written report of its
compliance with this paragraph.
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"Prior Notification to the Commission" required by this paragraph
shall be given on the Notification and Report Form set forth in the
Appendix to Part 803 of Title 16 of the Code of Federal Regulations,
as amended (hereinafter referred to as "the Notification Form"), and
shall be prepared and transmitted in accordance with the
requirements of that part, except that no filing fee will be required for
any such notification, notification shall be filed with the Secretary of
the Commission, notification need not be made to the United States
Department of Justice, and notification is required only of respondent
and not of any other party to the transaction. Respondent shall
provide the Notification Form to the Commission at least thirty (30)
days prior to consummating any such transaction (hereinafter referred
to as the "first waiting period"). If, within the first waiting period,
representatives of the Commission make a written request for
additional information, respondent shall not consummate the
transaction until twenty (20) days after substantially complying with
such request for additional information. Early termination of the
waiting periods in this paragraph may be requested and, where
appropriate, granted by letter from the Bureau of Competition.
Notwithstanding, prior notification shall not be required by this
paragraph for a transaction for which notification is required to be
made, and has been made, pursuant to Section 7A of the Clayton Act,
15 U.S.C. 18a.
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IN THE MATTER OF

ILLINOIS TOOL WORKS INC.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., INREGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC.7 OF THE CLAYTON ACT AND SEC. 5 OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3651. Complaint, April 23, 1996--Decision, April 23, 1996

This consent order requires Illinois Tool Works, among other things, to divest all
of Hobart Brothers' assets and businesses relating to industrial power sources
and industrial engine drives to Prestolite Electric Inc. or another Commission-
approved acquirer.

Appearances

For the Commission: Ann B. Malester, Christine Perez, Steven K.
Bernstein and William Baer.

For the respondent: James Wooten and Stewart Hudnut, in-house
counsel, Glenview, IL.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission ("Commission"), having reason
to believe that respondent, Illinois Tool Works Inc., a corporation
subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission, has agreed to acquire
all of the capital stock of Hobart Brothers Company ("Hobart"), a
corporation subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission, in violation
of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), as
amended, 15 U.S.C. 45, and that such an acquisition, if
consummated, would violate Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. 18 and Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended,
15 U.S.C. 45; and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding
in respect thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its
complaint, stating its charges as follows:

I. RESPONDENT

1. Respondent Illinois Tool Works Inc. ("ITW") is a corporation
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the state of
Delaware, with its office and principal place of business located at
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3600 West Lake Avenue, Glenview, Illinois. Respondent ITW is
engaged in, among other things, the research, development,
manufacture and sale of industrial power sources and industrial
engine drives.

2. For purposes of this proceeding, respondent is, and at all times
relevant herein has been, engaged in commerce as "commerce” is
defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12,
and is a corporation whose business is in or affecting commerce as
"commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. 44.

II. ACQUIRED COMPANY

3. Hobart is a corporation organized and existing under and by
virtue of the laws of Ohio, with its principal office and place of
business located at 600 West Main Street, Troy, Ohio. Hobart is
engaged in, among other things, the research, development,
manufacture and sale of industrial power sources and industrial
engine drives.

4. Hobart is, and at all times relevant herein has been, engaged in
commerce as "commerce” is defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act,
as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12, and is a corporation whose business is in
or affecting commerce as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the
FTC Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 44.

III. THE ACQUISITION

5. On or about May 2, 1995, ITW agreed to acquire all of the
issued and outstanding capital stock of Hobart, by means of a
statutory merger between Hobart and ITW Acquisition Corp., a
Delaware corporation which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITW.
The transaction is valued at approximately $225 million.

IV. THERELEVANT MARKETS

6. For purposes of this complaint, the relevant lines of commerce
in which to analyze the effects of the acquisition are:

a. The research, development, manufacture and sale of industrial
power sources, which are static arc welding power sources rated at
250 amperes and above; and
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b. The research, development, manufacture and sale of industrial
engine drives, which are rotating arc welding power sources rated at
250 amperes and above.

7. For purposes of this complaint, the United States is the relevant
geographic area in which to analyze the effects of the acquisition in
all the relevant lines of commerce.

8. The relevant markets set forth in paragraphs six and seven are
highly concentrated whether measured by Herfindahl-Hirschmann
Indices ("HHI") or by two-firm and four-firm concentration ratios.

9. Entry into the relevant markets set forth in paragraphs six and
seven would not occur in a timely manner to deter or counteract the
adverse competitive effects described in paragraph eleven because of,
among other things, the difficulty of establishing a distribution and
service network and gaining brand name recognition and customer
acceptance in the markets.

10. ITW and Hobart are actual significant competitors in the
relevant markets set forth in paragraphs six and seven.

V.EFFECTS OF THE ACQUISITION

11. The effects of the acquisition may be substantially to lessen
competition and to tend to create a monopoly in the relevant markets
set forth above in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C.
18, and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C.
45, in the following ways, among others:

a. By enhancing the likelihood of collusion or coordinated
interaction between or among the remaining firms in the relevant
markets;

b. By eliminating direct actual competition between ITW and
Hobart in the relevant markets;

c. By increasing the likelihood that consumers in the United
States would be forced to pay higher prices for industrial power
sources and industrial engine drives; and

d. By increasing the likelihood that quality and technological
innovation in the industrial power source and industrial engine drive
markets would be reduced.
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.VI. VIOLATIONS CHARGED

12. The acquisition agreement described in paragraph five
constitutes a violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. 45.

13. The acquisition described in paragraph five, if consummated,
would constitute a violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended,
15U.S.C. 45.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of the proposed acquisition by respondent of all of the assets and
businesses of Hobart Brothers Company ("Hobart"), and the
respondent having been furnished thereafter with a copy of a draft of
complaint that the Bureau of Competition presented to the
Commission for its consideration and which, if issued by the
Commission, would charge respondent with violations of Section 7
of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45; and

Respondent, its attorneys, and counsel for the Commission having
thereafter executed an Agreement containing a consent order, an
admission by respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the
aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of said
Agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in
such complaint, or that the facts as alleged in such complaint, other
than jurisdictional facts, are true and waivers and other provisions as
required by the Commission's Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent
has violated the said Acts, and that a complaint should issue stating
its charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the
executed Consent Agreement and placed such Agreement on the
public record for a period of sixty (60) days, now in further
conformity with the procedure described in Section 2.34 of its Rules,
the Commission hereby issues its complaint, makes the following
jurisdictional findings and enters the following order:
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1. Respondent Illinois Tool Works Inc. ("ITW") is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the state of Delaware, with its office and principal place of
business located at 3600 West Lake Avenue, Glenview, Illinois.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding
is in the public interest.

ORDER

It is ordered, That, as used in this order, the following definitions
shall apply:

A. "Respondent” or "ITW" means Illinois Tool Works Inc., its
directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives,
predecessors, successors and assigns; its subsidiaries, divisions,
groups and affiliates controlled by Illinois Tool Works Inc., and the
respective directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives,
successors, and assigns of each.

B. "Hobart" means Hobart Brothers Company, an Ohio
corporation, with its principal office and place of business located at
600 West Main Street, Troy, Ohio, its directors, officers, employees,
agents and representatives, predecessors, successors and assigns; its
subsidiaries, divisions, groups and affiliates controlled by Hobart
Brothers Company, and the respective directors, officers, employees,
agents, representatives, successors, and assigns of each.

C. "Commission" means the Federal Trade Commission.

D. "Acquisition" means the acquisition by respondent of all of the
issued and outstanding Hobart capital stock, by means of a statutory
merger between Hobart and ITW Acquisition Corp., a Delaware
corporation which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITW.

E. "Industrial power sources" means static arc welding power
sources rated at 250 amperes or higher, including, but not limited to,
any such power sources using inverter technology.

F. "Industrial engine drives" means rotating arc welding power
sources rated at 250 amperes or higher.

G. "Battery chargers" means devices used to charge industrial
batteries.
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H. "Aircraft ground power units” means power conversion
devices that provide power to aircraft that are on the ground.

1. "Assets and Businesses" means all assets, businesses and
goodwill, tangible and intangible, including, without limitation, the
following:

1. All machinery, fixtures, equipment, vehicles, transportation
facilities, furniture, tools and other tangible personal property;

2. All customer lists, vendor lists, catalogs, sales promotion
literature, advertising materials, research materials, technical
information, management information systems, software, software
licenses, inventions, copyrights, trademarks, trade names (excluding
the Hobart trade name), trade secrets, intellectual property, patents,
technology, know-how, specifications, designs, drawings, processes
and quality control data;

3. The exclusive right to use the Hobart trade name in connection
with the research, development, manufacture and sale of industrial
power sources and industrial engine drives.

4. Inventory;

5. Rights, titles and interests in and to the contracts entered into
in the ordinary course of business with customers (together with
associated bid and performance bonds), suppliers, sales
representatives, distributors, agents, personal property lessors,
personal property lessees, licensors, licensees, consignors and
consignees;

6. All rights under warranties and guarantees, express or implied;

7. All books, records, and files; and

8. All items of prepaid expense.

J. "Hobart Industrial Welding Equipment Business" means of all
of the Assets and Businesses used in the research, development,
manufacture and sale by Hobart of:

1. Industrial power sources;

2. Industrial engine drives;

3. Battery chargers; and

4. Aircraft ground power units.
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K. "Hobart Power Conversion Operations” means all of the
Assets and Businesses used in the research, development,
manufacture and sale by Hobart of:

1. Static arc welding power sources;

2. Rotating arc welding power sources;
3. Battery chargers; and

4. Aircraft ground power units.

L. "Prestolite" means Prestolite Electric Incorporated, a Delaware
corporation, with its principal office and place of business located at
2100 Commonwealth Blvd., Ann Arbor, Michigan.

M. "Marketability, viability and competitiveness" of the Hobart
Industrial Welding Equipment assets means that the assets when used
in conjunction with the assets of the acquirer are capable of operating
a business which is substantially similar to the Hobart Industrial
Welding Equipment Business at the time of the acquisition, with
substantially similar sales levels and product lines.

II.
It is further ordered, That:

A. ITW shall divest, absolutely and in good faith, the Hobart
Industrial Welding Equipment Business. The Hobart Industrial
Welding Equipment Business shall be divested either:

1. Within one (1) month of the date this order becomes final, to
Prestolite, pursuant to the January 17, 1996, Asset Purchase
Agreement between Hobart and Prestolite as modified by the January
24, 1996, undertaking, as Confidential Appendix I. If divested to
Prestolite, the Hobart Industrial Welding Equipment Business shall
exclude Aircraft Ground Power Units; or

2. Within twelve (12) months of the date this order becomes final,
to an acquirer that receives the prior approval of the Commission and
only in a manner that receives the prior approval of the Commission.
In the event that the acquirer does not choose to acquire the battery
charger or ground power unit assets and businesses, because the
acquirer does not need such assets in order to engage in the industrial
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power source and industrial engine drive businesses, respondent shall
not be required to divest such assets.

B. The purpose of the divestiture is to ensure the continuation of
the Hobart Industrial Welding Equipment Business as an ongoing,
viable operation, engaged in the research, development, manufacture
and sale of industrial power sources and industrial engine drives, and
to remedy the lessening of competition resulting from the proposed
acquisition as alleged in the Commission's complaint.

C. Until the Hobart Industrial Welding Equipment Business has
been divested, ITW shall:

1. Maintain the marketability, viability, and competitiveness of
the Hobart Industrial Welding Equipment Business, and shall not
cause or permit the destruction, removal, wasting, deterioration, or
impairment of any assets or business it may have to divest, except in
the ordinary course of business and except for ordinary wear and tear,
and it shall not sell, transfer, encumber or otherwise impair the
marketability, viability or competitiveness of the Hobart Industrial
Welding Equipment Business; and

2. Expend funds for research and development, quality control,
manufacturing and marketing of each of the Hobart Industrial
Welding Equipment Business products at a level not lower than that
budgeted for the 1995 fiscal year, and shall increase such spending
as is deemed reasonably necessary in light of competitive conditions.

D. Upon reasonable notice from the acquirer to respondent,
respondent shall provide, at no cost, such assistance to the acquirer
as is reasonably necessary to enable the acquirer to design and
manufacture industrial power sources and industrial engine drives in
substantially the same manner and quality employed or achieved by
Hobart prior to the Acquisition. Such assistance shall include
reasonable consultation with knowledgeable employees of respondent
and training at the acquirer's facility for a period of time sufficient to
satisfy the acquirer's management that its personnel are appropriately
trained in the design and manufacture of industrial power sources and
industrial engine drives. Respondent shall convey all know-how
necessary to design and manufacture industrial power sources and
industrial engine drives in substantially the same manner and quality
employed or achieved by Hobart prior to the Acquisition. However,
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respondent shall not be required to continue providing such
assistance for more than nine (9) months.

II1.
It is further ordered, That:

A. If ITW has not divested, absolutely and in good faith and with
the Commission's prior approval, the Hobart Industrial Welding
Equipment Business within twelve (12) months of the date this order
becomes final, the Commission may appoint a trustee to divest the
Hobart Industrial Welding Equipment Business. In the event that the
Commission or the Attorney General brings an action pursuant to
Section 5(1) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45(1),
or any other statute enforced by the Commission, ITW shall consent
to the appointment of a trustee in such action. Neither the
appointment of a trustee nor a decision not to appoint a trustee under
this paragraph III. shall preclude the Commission or the Attorney
General from seeking civil penalties or any other relief available to
it, including a court-appointed trustee, pursuant to Section 5(1) of the
Federal Trade Commission Act, or any other statute enforced by the
Commission, for any failure by ITW to comply with this order.

B. 1If a trustee is appointed by the Commission or a court
pursuant to paragraph IIL.A. of this order, ITW shall consent to the
following terms and conditions regarding the trustee's powers, duties,
authority, and responsibilities:

1. The Commission shall select the trustee, subject to the consent
of ITW, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The
trustee shall be a person with experience and expertise in mergers and
divestitures. If ITW has not opposed, in writing, including the
reasons for opposing, the selection of any proposed trustee within ten
(10) days after notice by the staff of the Commission to ITW of the
identity of any proposed trustee, ITW shall be deemed to have
consented to the selection of the proposed trustee.

2. Subject to the prior approval of the Commission, the trustee
shall have the exclusive power and authority to divest the Hobart
Industrial Welding Equipment Business.

3. Within ten (10) days after appointment of the trustee, ITW
shall execute a trust agreement that, subject to the prior approval of
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the Commission and, in the case of a court-appointed trustee, of the
court, transfers to the trustee all rights and powers necessary to
permit the trustee to effect the divestiture required by this order.

4. The trustee shall have twelve (12) months from the date the
Commission approves the trust agreement described in paragraph
IIL.B.3. to accomplish the divestiture, which shall be subject to the
prior approval of the Commission. If, however, at the end of the
twelve month period, the trustee has submitted a plan of divestiture
or believes that divestiture can be achieved within a reasonable time,
the divestiture period may be extended by the Commission, or, in the
case of a court-appointed trustee, by the court; provided, however,
the Commission may extend this period only two (2) times.

5. The trustee shall have full and complete access to the
personnel, books, records and facilities related to the Hobart
Industrial Welding Equipment Business, or to any other relevant
information, as the trustee may request. ITW shall develop such
financial or other information as the trustee may request and shall
cooperate with the trustee. ITW shall take no action to interfere with
or impede the trustee's accomplishment of the divestiture. Any
delays in divestiture caused by ITW shall extend the time for
divestiture under this paragraph in an amount equal to the delay, as
determined by the Commission or, for a court-appointed trustee, by
the court.

6. The trustee shall use his or her best efforts to negotiate the
most favorable price and terms available in each contract that is
submitted to the Commission, subject to ITW's absolute and
unconditional obligation to divest at no minimum price. The
divestiture shall be made in the manner and to the acquirer as set out
in paragraph II. of this order; provided, however, if the trustee
receives bona fide offers from more than one acquiring entity, and if
the Commission determines to approve more than one such acquiring
entity, the trustee shall divest to the acquiring entity selected by the
ITW from among those approved by the Commission.

7. The trustee shall serve, without bond or other security, at the
cost and expense of ITW, on such reasonable and customary terms
and conditions as the Commission or a court may set. The trustee
shall have the authority to employ, at the cost and expense of ITW,
such consultants, accountants, attorneys, investment bankers,
business brokers, appraisers, and other representatives and assistants
as are necessary to carry out the trustee's duties and responsibilities.
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The trustee shall account for all monies derived from the divestiture
and all expenses incurred. After approval by the Commission and, in
the case of a court-appointed trustee, by the court, of the account of
the trustee, including fees for his or her services, all remaining
monies shall be paid at the direction of ITW, and the trustee's power
shall be terminated. The trustee's compensation shall be based at
least in significant part on a commission arrangement contingent on
the trustee's divesting the Hobart Industrial Welding Equipment
Business.

8. ITW shall indemnify the trustee and hold the trustee harmless
against any losses, claims, damages, liabilities, or expenses arising
out of, or in connection with, the performance of the trustee's duties,
including all reasonable fees of counsel and other expenses incurred
in connection with the preparation for, or defense of any claim,
whether or not resulting in any liability, except to the extent that such
liabilities, losses, damages, claims, or expenses result from
misfeasance, gross negligence, willful or wanton acts, or bad faith by
the trustee.

9. If the trustee ceases to act or fails to act diligently, a substitute
trustee shall be appointed in the same manner as provided in
paragraph III.A. of this order.

10. The Commission or, in the case of a court-appointed trustee,
the court, may on its own initiative or at the request of the trustee
issue such additional orders or directions as may be necessary or
appropriate to accomplish the divestiture required by this order.

11. The trustee may also divest such additional ancillary assets
and businesses of the Hobart Power Conversion Operations and effect
such arrangements as are necessary to assure the marketability,
viability and competitiveness of the Hobart Industrial Welding
Equipment Business.

12. The trustee shall have no obligation or authority to operate
or maintain the Hobart Industrial Welding Equipment Business.

13. The trustee shall report in writing to ITW and the
Commission every sixty (60) days concerning the trustee's efforts to
accomplish divestiture.

Iv.

It is further ordered, That consistent with ITW's obligation to
maintain the marketability, viability and competitiveness of the
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Hobart Industrial Welding Equipment Business, ITW may engage in
any business other than the Hobart Industrial Welding Equipment
Business, including without limitation, the welding equipment
business it is currently operating through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Miller Electric Mfg. Co.

V.

It is further ordered, That within sixty (60) days after the date this
order becomes final and every sixty (60) days thereafter until ITW
has fully complied with paragraphs II. and III. of this order, ITW
shall submit to the Commission a verified written report setting forth
in detail the manner and form in which it intends to comply, is
complying, and has complied with paragraphs II. and III. of this
order. ITW shall include in its compliance reports, among other
things that are required from time to time, a full description of the
efforts being made to comply with paragraphs II. and III. including
a description of all substantive contacts or negotiations for the
divestiture required by this order, including the identity of all parties
contacted. ITW shall include in its compliance reports copies of all
written communications to and from such parties, all internal
memoranda, and all reports and recommendations concerning the
divestiture.

VI

It is further ordered, That ITW shall notify the Commission at
least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in the corporate
respondent such as dissolution, assignment, sale resulting in
emergence of a successor corporation, or the creation or dissolution
of subsidiaries or any other change in the corporation that may affect
compliance obligations arising out of the order.

VIIL

It is further ordered, That, for the purpose of determining or
securing compliance with this order, ITW shall permit any duly
authorized representatives of the Commission:
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A. Access, during office hours and in the presence of counsel, to
inspect and copy all books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence,
memoranda and other records and documents in the possession or
under the control of ITW, relating to any matters contained in this
order; and

B. Upon five (5) days' notice to ITW, and without restraint of
interference from ITW, to interview officers, directors, or employees
of ITW, who may have counsel present, regarding any such matters.
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IN THE MATTER OF

HUGHES DANBURY OPTICAL SYSTEMS, INC., ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., INREGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC.7 OF THE CLAYTON ACT AND SEC. 5 OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3652. Complaint, April 30, 1996--Decision, April 30, 1996

This consent order prohibits, among other things, the respondents from enforcing
the exclusivity provisions contained in a teaming agreement -- between Hughes
Danbury Optical Systems, Inc. and Xinetics, Inc. -- thereby ensuring that the
Boeing Corp. team has a source for deformable mirrors other than Itek Optical
Systems, once Itek is acquired by Hughes. The order also prohibits the
respondents from accessing proprietary information from Itek regarding the
Boeing team's airborne laser technical design or the cost of its adaptive optics
system.

Appearances

For the Commission: Ann B. Malester, John Scribner and William
J. Baer.

For the respondents: Bill Slowey and Steven Cernak, in-house
counsel, Detroit, MI.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal
Trade Commission ("Commission"), having reason to believe that
Hughes Danbury Optical Systems, Inc. ("HDOS"), Hughes
Electronics Corporation, and General Motors Corporation, hereinafter
sometimes referred to collectively as respondents, all corporations
subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission, have agreed to
purchase the business and selected assets of the Itek Optical Systems
Division of Litton Systems, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Litton
Industries, Inc., a corporation subject to the jurisdiction of the
Commission, in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, as amended ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. 45; and it
appearing to the Commission that a proceeding in respect thereof
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would be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint, stating its
charges as follows:

I. DEFINITIONS

1. "Airborne Laser System" means a system that will utilize a 747
aircraft, equipped with a high energy laser projector, to fly at high
altitudes near the forward edge of a battle area to locate and destroy
incoming short-range missiles.

2. "Boeing-Lockheed Martin Team" means the team including
The Boeing Company, Lockheed Martin Corporation and Itek Optical
Systems, a division of Litton Systems, Inc., among others, that
currently holds a Phase I concept design contract for the Phillips
Laboratory Airborne Laser Program.

3. "HDOS/Xinetics Letter of Intent" means the Letter of Intent
entered into on September 21, 1995, between HDOS and Xinetics in
which HDOS expresses its intention to use Xinetics as a supplier of
any Deformable Mirror which may be required for the Phillips
Laboratory Airborne Laser Program.

4. "Phillips Laboratory Airborne Laser Program' is a United
States Air Force Advanced Technology Demonstration Program to
develop and then demonstrate the necessary technologies to acquire,
track, and destroy theater ballistic missiles during the boost phase of
flight.

5. "Respondents" means Hughes Danbury Optical Systems, Inc.,
Hughes Electronics Corporation, and General Motors Corporation.

6. "Rockwell-Hughes Team" means the team including Rockwell
International Corporation, Hughes Electronics Corporation, Hughes
Danbury Optical Systems, Inc., and Xinetics Incorporated, among
others, that currently holds a Phase I concept design contract for the
Phillips Laboratory Airborne Laser Program.

7. "Xinetics" means Xinetics Incorporated, a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, with its office and
principal place of business located at 410 Great Road #A6, Littleton,
Massachusetts.
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II. RESPONDENTS

8. Respondent Hughes Danbury Optical Systems, Inc. ("HDOS"),
is a corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its office and
principal place of business located at 100 Wooster Road, Danbury,
Connecticut.

9. Respondent Hughes Electronics Corporation ("Hughes") is a
corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its office and
principal place of business located at 7200 Hughes Terrace, Los
Angeles, California.

10. Respondent General Motors Corporation ("GM") is a
corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its office located at
3044 W. Grand Blvd., Detroit, Michigan.

11. For purposes of this proceeding, respondents are, and at all
times relevant herein have been, engaged in commerce as
"commerce" is defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act, as amended,
15 U.S.C. 12, and are corporations whose businesses are in or
affecting commerce as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the
FTC Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 44.

II1. ACQUIRED COMPANY

12. Itek Optical Systems ("Itek") is a division of Litton Systems,
Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Litton Industries, Inc., a
corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its office and
principal place of business located at 10 Maguire Blvd. Lexington,
Massachusetts.

13. For purposes of this proceeding, Itek is, and at all times
relevant herein has been, engaged in commerce as "commerce" is
defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12,
and is a corporation whose business is in or affecting commerce as
"commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. 44.
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IV. THE ACQUISITION

14. On or about September 26, 1995, HDOS entered into a letter
of intent to purchase the business and selected assets of Itek ("the
Acquisition").

V. THERELEVANT MARKET

15. For purposes of this complaint, the relevant line of commerce
in which to analyze the effects of the Acquisition is the research,
development, manufacture and sale of an Airborne Laser System for
use in the Phillips Laboratory Airborne Laser Program.

16. For purposes of this complaint, the United States is the
relevant geographic area in which to analyze the effects of the
Acquisition in the relevant line of commerce.

17. The relevant market set forth in paragraphs fifteen and sixteen
is highly concentrated as measured by the Herfindahl-Hirschmann
Index ("HHI") or the two-firm and four-firm concentration ratios
("concentration ratios"), as there are only two teams competing in this
market.

18. Entry into the research, development, manufacture and sale
of an Airborne Laser System for the Phillips Laboratory Airborne
Laser Program would not occur in a timely manner to deter
anticompetitive effects because the bids for that program are due in
July 1996.

19. Because Itek is exclusively teamed with Lockheed Martin on
the Boeing-Lockheed Martin Team and HDOS is exclusively teamed
with Rockwell on the Rockwell-Hughes Team for the Phillips
Laboratory Airborne Laser Program, HDOS and Itek are actual
competitors in the relevant market set forth in paragraphs fifteen and
sixteen.

V1. EFFECTS OF THE ACQUISITION

20. The effects of the Acquisition, if consummated, may be
substantially to lessen competition or to tend to create a monopoly in
the relevant market in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended,
15 U.S.C. 45, in the following ways, among others:
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a. Actual, direct and substantial competition between the Boeing-
Lockheed Martin Team and the Rockwell-Hughes Team in the
research, development, manufacture and sale of an Airborne Laser
System for use in the Phillips Laboratory Airborne Laser Program
will be reduced;

b. Respondents may disadvantage the Boeing-Lockheed Martin
Team competing for the Phillips Laboratory Airborne Laser Program
in a manner that raises the costs of that competing team; and

c. Respondents may gain access to competitively sensitive non-
public information concerning the Boeing-Lockheed Martin Team for
the Phillips Laboratory Airborne Laser Program competition,
whereby:

(1) Actual competition between the Boeing-Lockheed Martin
Team and the Rockwell-Hughes Team for the Phillips Laboratery
Airborne Laser Program will be reduced; and

(2) Advancements in Airborne Laser System research,
development, innovation and quality for the Phillips Laboratory
Airborne Laser Program will be reduced.

VII. VIOLATIONS CHARGED

21. The acquisition agreement described in paragraph fourteen
constitutes a violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. 45.

22. The acquisition described in paragraph fourteen, if
consummated, would constitute a violation of Section 7 of the
Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the FTC
Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45,

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of the proposed acquisition by respondents of the assets and
businesses of the Itek Optical Systems Division of Litton Systems,
Incorporated ("Itek"), and the respondents having been furnished
thereafter with a copy of a draft of complaint that the Bureau of
Competition presented to the Commission for its consideration and
which, if issued by the Commission, would charge respondents with
violations of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18,
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and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. 45; and

Respondents, their attorneys, and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order,
an admission by respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in
the aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of said
agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by respondents that the law has been violated as alleged in
such complaint, or that the facts as alleged in such complaint, other
than jurisdictional facts, are true and waivers and other provisions as
required by the Commission's Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondents
have violated the said Acts, and that a complaint should issue stating
its charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the
executed consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public
record for a period of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with
the procedure described in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission
hereby issues its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent Hughes Danbury Optical Systems, Incorporated
("HDOS"), is a corporation organized, existing, and doing business
under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its
office and principal place of business located at 100 Wooster Road,
Danbury, Connecticut.

2. Respondent Hughes Electronics Corporation ("Hughes") is a
corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its office and
principal place of business located at 7200 Hughes Terrace, Los
Angeles, California.

3. Respondent General Motors Corporation ("GM") is a
corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its office and
principal place of business located at 3044 W. Grand Blvd., Detroit,
Michigan.

4. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondents, and the proceeding
is in the public interest.
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ORDER

It is ordered, That, as used in this order, the following definitions
shall apply:

A. "HDOS" means Hughes Danbury Optical Systems, Inc., its
officers, employees, agents and representatives, predecessors,
successors, and assigns; its subsidiaries, divisions, groups and
affiliates controlled by HDOS, and the respective officers,
employees, agents, and representatives, successors and assigns of
each.

B. "Hughes" means Hughes Electronics Corporation, its officers,
employees, agents and representatives, predecessors, successors, and
assigns; its subsidiaries, divisions, groups and affiliates controlled by
Hughes, and the respective officers, employees, agents, and
representatives, successors and assigns of each.

C. "GM" means General Motors Corporation, its officers,
employees, agents and representatives, predecessors, successors, and
assigns; its subsidiaries, divisions, groups and affiliates controlled by
GM, and the respective officers, employees, agents, and
representatives, successors and assigns of each.

D. "Itek” means Itek Optical Systems Division of Litton Systems,
Incorporated, its officers, employees, agents and representatives,
predecessors, successors, and assigns; its subsidiaries, divisions,
groups and affiliates controlled by Itek, and the respective officers,
employees, agents, and representatives, successors and assigns of
each.

E. "Respondents” means HDOS, Hughes and GM.

F. "Commission" means the Federal Trade Commission.

G. "Xinetics" means Xinetics Incorporated, a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, with its office and
principal place of business located at 410 Great Road #A6, Littleton,
Massachusetts.

H. "Person” means any natural person, corporate entity,
partnership, association, joint venture, government entity, trust or
other business or legal entity.
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I. "HDOS/Xinetics Letter of Intent” means the Letter of Intent
entered into on September 21, 1995, between HDOS and Xinetics in
which HDOS expresses its intention to use Xinetics as a supplier of
any Deformable Mirror which may be required for the Phillips
Laboratory Airborne Laser Program.

J. "Phillips Laboratory Airborne Laser Program" is a United
States Air Force Advanced Technology Demonstration program to
develop and then demonstrate the necessary technologies to acquire,
track, and destroy theater ballistic missiles during the boost phase of
flight.

K. "Non-Public ABL Information" means any information not in
the public domain received or developed by Itek in its capacity as a
subcontractor to Lockheed Martin Corporation for the Phillips
Laboratory Airborne Laser Program. Non-Public ABL Information
shall not include: (i) information which subsequently falls within the
public domain through no violation of this order by respondents, or
(i1) information which subsequently becomes known to respondents
not in breach of a confidential disclosure agreement.

IL.

It is further ordered, That respondents shall not enforce or
attempt to enforce any provision contained in the HDOS/Xinetics
Letter of Intent, or take any other action, that would inhibit Xinetics
from teaming or otherwise contracting with any other person for the
purpose of bidding on, designing, developing, manufacturing, or
supplying any part of the Phillips Laboratory Airborne Laser
Program.

1L

It is further ordered, That:

A. Respondents shall not receive, gain access to or in any manner
obtain any Non-Public ABL Information without the express written
permission of Lockheed Martin Corporation.

B. Upon request from Lockheed Martin Corporation, respondents
shall provide to Lockheed Martin Corporation any Non-Public ABL
Information in a timely fashion not to exceed seven (7) days from the
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receipt of such request. Respondents may require payment for their
own direct costs in providing such information.

IV.

It is further ordered, That respondents shall comply with all terms
of the Interim Agreement, attached to this order and made a part
hereof as Appendix L.

V.

It is further ordered, That within sixty (60) days of the date this
order becomes final and every sixty days thereafter for the first year
after this order becomes final, and at such other times as the
Commission may require, respondents shall file a verified written
report with the Commission setting forth in detail the manner and
form in which they have complied and are complying with this order.
Respondents shall include in their compliance reports, among other
things that are required from time to time, a full description of the
efforts being made to comply with paragraph II and paragraph III of
the order. Respondents shall include in their compliance reports
copies of all written communications, all internal memoranda, and all
reports and recommendations concerning compliance with the
provisions in paragraph II and paragraph III of the order.

VL

It is further ordered, That respondents shall notify the
Commission at least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in
the corporate respondents, such as dissolution, assignment, sale
resulting in the emergence of a successor corporation, or the creation
or dissolution of subsidiaries or any other change in the corporate
respondents that may affect compliance obligations arising out of the
order.

VIL

It is further ordered, That, for the purpose of determining or
securing compliance with this order, respondents shall permit any
duly authorized representative of the Commission:
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A. Access, during office hours and in the presence of counsel, to
inspect and copy all books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence,
memoranda and other records and documents in the possession or
under the control of any respondent relating to any matters contained
in this order; and

B. Upon five (5) days' notice to any respondent and without
restraint or interference from it, to interview officers, directors, or
employees of that respondent, who may have counsel present,
regarding such matters.

APPENDIX 1

INTERIM AGREEMENT

This Interim Agreement is by and between Hughes Danbury
Optical Systems, Incorporated ("HDOS"), Hughes Electronics
Corporation ("Hughes"), and General Motors Corporation ("GM"),
three corporations organized and existing under the laws of the State
of Delaware (collectively referred to as "proposed respondents"), and
the Federal Trade Commission (the "Commission"), an independent
agency of the United States Government, established under the
Federal Trade Commission Act of 1914, 15 U.S.C. 41, et seq.
(collectively, the "Parties").

PREMISES

Whereas, HDOS has proposed to acquire the Itek Optical systems
Division of Litton Systems, Incorporated ("Itek"); and

Whereas, the Commission is now investigating the proposed
acquisition to determine if it would violate any of the statutes the
Commission enforces; and

Whereas, if the Commissicn accepts the Agreement Containing
Consent Order ("Consent Agreement"), the Commission will place
it on the public record for a period of at least sixty (60) days and
subsequently may either withdraw such acceptance or issue and serve
its complaint and decision in disposition of the proceeding pursuant
to the provisions of Section 2.34 of the Commission's Rules; and

Whereas, the Commission is concerned that if an understanding
is not reached, preserving competition during the period prior to the
final acceptance of the Consent Agreement by the Commission (after
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the 60-day public notice period), there may be interim competitive
harm and divestiture or other relief resulting from a proceeding
challenging the legality of the proposed acquisition might not be
possible, or might be less than an effective remedy; and

Whereas, proposed respondents entering into this Interim
Agreement shall in no way be construed as an admission by proposed
respondents that the proposed acquisition constitutes a violation of
any statute; and

Whereas, proposed respondents understand that no act or
transaction contemplated by this Interim Agreement shall be deemed
immune or exempt from the provisions of the antitrust laws or the
Federal Trade Commission Act by reason of anything contained in
this Interim Agreement.

Now, therefore, the Parties agree, upon the understanding that the
Commission has not yet determined whether the proposed acquisition
will be challenged, and in consideration of the Commission's
agreement that, at the time it accepts the Consent Agreement for
public comment, it will grant early termination of the Hart-Scott-
Rodino waiting period, as follows:

1. Proposed respondents agree to execute and be bound by the
terms of the order contained in the Consent Agreement, as if it were
final, from the date the Consent Agreement is accepted for public
comment by the Commission.

2. Proposed respondents agree to deliver within three (3) days of
the date the Consent Agreement is accepted for public comment by
the Commission, a copy of the Consent Agreement and a copy of this
Interim Agreement to the United States Department of Defense, The
Boeing Company, Lockheed Martin Corporation and Xinetics
Incorporated.

3. Proposed respondents agree to submit within thirty (30) days
of the date the Consent Agreement is signed by the proposed
respondents, an initial report, pursuant to Section 2.33 of the
Commission's Rules, signed by the proposed respondents setting
forth in detail the manner in which the proposed respondents will
comply with paragraph II and paragraph III of the Consent
Agreement.

4. Proposed respondents agree that, from the date the Consent
Agreement is accepted for public comment by the Commission until
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the first of the dates listed in subparagraphs 4.a and 4.b, they will
comply with the provisions of this Interim Agreement:

a. Ten (10) business days after the Commission withdraws its
acceptance of the Consent Agreement pursuant to the provisions of
Section 2.34 of the Commission's Rules;

b. The date the Commission issues its complaint and decision and
order.

5. Proposed respondents waive all rights to contest the validity of
this Interim Agreement.

6. For the purpose of determining or securing compliance with
this Interim Agreement, proposed respondents shall permit any duly
authorized representative of the Commission:

a. Access during office hours and in the presence of counsel to
inspect and copy all books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence,
memoranda, and other records and documents in the possession or
under the control of any proposed respondent relating to any matters
contained in this Interim Agreement; and

b. Upon five (5) days' notice to any proposed respondent and
without restraint or interference from it, to interview officers,
directors, or employees of that proposed respondent, who may have
counsel present, regarding any such matters.

7. This Interim Agreement shall not be binding until accepted by
the Commission.
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IN THE MATTER OF

AZRAK-HAMWAY INTERNATIONAL, INC.,, ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

-Docket C-3653. Complaint, May 2, 1996--Decision, May 2, 1996

This consent order prohibits, among other things, the New York-based
manufacturers and distributors of toys from using deceptive demonstrations
and certain other misrepresentations. In addition, the consent order requires
the respondents to offer full refunds to consumers who bought Steel Tec toy
vehicles, and to notify television stations that ran the challenged
advertisements of the Commission action, and of the availability of guidelines
for screening children's advertising.

Appearances

For the Commission: Toby M. Levin and Dean Forbes.
For the respondents: Aaron Locker, Locker, Greenberg &
Brainin, New York, N.Y.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that
Azrak-Hamway International, Inc., a corporation, and Marvin Azrak
and Ezra Hamway, individually and as officers of said corporation
("respondents"), have violated the provisions of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, and it appearing to the Commission that a
proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest,
alleges:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Azrak-Hamway International, Inc.
is a New York corporation, with its principal office or place of
business at 1107 Broadway, New York, New York.

Respondent Marvin Azrak is the Senior Executive Vice President,
and an owner and director of Azrak-Hamway International, Inc.
Individually or in concert with others, he formulates, directs, and
controls the acts and practices of Azrak-Hamway International, Inc.,
including the acts and practices alleged in this complaint. His
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principal office or place of business is the same as that of Azrak-
Hamway International, Inc.

Respondent Ezra Hamway is the President, and an owner and
director of Azrak-Hamway International, Inc. Individually or in
concert with others, he formulates, direct, and controls the acts and
practices of Azrak-Hamway International, Inc., including the acts and
practices alleged in this complaint. His principal office or place of
business is the same as that of Azrak-Hamway International, Inc.

PAR. 2. Respondents have manufactured, advertised, labeled,
promoted, offered for sale, sold, and distributed toys, including the
Steel Tec Steel Construction System line of toys ("Steel Tec toys"),
through Azrak-Hamway International, Inc.'s Remco Toys Division,
to consumers.

PAR. 3. The acts and practices of respondents alleged in this
complaint have been in or affecting commerce as "commerce" is -
defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

PAR. 4. Respondents have disseminated or have caused to be
disseminated advertisements and packages for Steel Tec toys,
including but not necessarily limited to the attached Exhibits A-G.
These advertisements and packages contain the following statements
and depictions:

A. [Exhibit A, Television Advertisement]

[Audio] "Born out of steel and forging the way, the Steel Tec Construction
System. Get a grip on the Power Wrench, feel the magnetic force. Because no
matter how high, no matter how fast, no matter how powerful, or no matter how
monstrous your imagination might be, Steel Tec is the beginning of creation.”

This television advertisement contains depictions of the Steel Tec motorized
helicopter, "Formula 1" race car, and "Off Road Super Sport" vehicle operating on
their own power without human assistance, including the following scenes:

1. One sequence depicts an assembled Steel Tec motorized helicopter hovering,
with propellers and rear rotors spinning, then ascending. The audio portion
simulates the sound of a helicopter in flight, including the sound of propellers
spinning.

2. Another sequence depicts an assembled Steel Tec Formula 1 race car drivin g
at a rapid pace on a grated surface.

3. Another sequence depicts a rear wheel of an assembled Steel Tec Off Road
Super Sport vehicle spinning and peeling out from a pile of dirt or sand. The ad
then cuts to a scene of the Steel Tec Off Road Super Sport vehicle driving and
bounding over a dirt or sand covered surface.
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B. [Exhibit B, Television Advertisement]

[Audio] "Born out of steel and forging the way, the Steel Tec Construction
System. Get a grip on the Power Wrench, feel the magnetic force.... Steel Tec
powerful. Steel Tec cool as chrome. With Harley-Davidson. Steel Tec, the
beginning of creation.”

This television advertisement contains depictions of the Steel Tec "Sand
Buggy" vehicle and "Harley-Davidson® Electra Glide" motorcycle operating on
their own power without human assistance, including the following scenes:

1. One sequence depicts a rear wheel of an assembled Steel Tec Sand Buggy
vehicle spinning and peeling out from a pile of dirt or sand. The ad then cuts to a
scene of the Steel Tec Sand Buggy vehicle driving over a dirt or sand covered
surface and leaving a cloud of dust behind.

2. Another sequence depicts the rear wheel of an assembled Steel Tec Harley-
Davidson® Electra Glide motorcycle spinning and peeling out from a pile of dirt
or sand. The audio portion simulates the sound of a motorcycle revving up. The ad
then cuts to a scene showing the Steel Tec Harley-Davidson® Electra Glide
motorcycle driving on two wheels on a dirt or sand covered surface. The audio
portion of the ad simulates the sound of a motorcycle being driven.

C. [Exhibit C, Television Advertisement]

[Audio] "Now for a limited time, Steel Tec's Value Packed Power Command
Workshop. Complete with a Steel Tec Power Wrench, storage case and all the tools
and parts you need to get your dreams off the ground.”

This television advertisement contains depictions of the Steel Tec "Hypersonic
Fighter" plane operating on its own power without human assistance, including the
following scene:

1. One sequence depicts an assembled Steel Tec Hypersonic Fighter plane
flying across the television screen. The audio portion simulates the sound of a jet
plane in flight.

2. A small print video-only disclosure states, "Product Does Not Fly Without
Assistance."

D. [Exhibit D, Television Advertisement]

[Audio] "Born out of steel and forging the way, the Steel Tec Construction
System. Get a grip on the Power Wrench, feel the magnetic force. Because no
matter how fast, no matter how powerful, no matter how massive, or no matter how
high your imagination might be, Steel Tec is the beginning of creation."

This television advertisement contains depictions of the Steel Tec "Off Road
Super Sport," "Dozer," "Dump Truck," and motorized helicopter operating on their
own power without human assistance, including the following scenes:

1. One sequence depicts a rear wheel of an assembled Steet Tec Off Road
Super Sport vehicle spinning and peeling out from a pile of dirt or sand. The ad
then cuts to a scene of the Steel Tec Off Road Super Sport vehicle driving and
bounding over a dirt or sand covered surface.
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2. Another sequence depicts an assembled Steel Tec Dozer vehicle driving
forward and pushing a pile of dirt or sand on a dirt or sand covered surface.

3. Another sequence depicts an assembled Steel Tec Dump Truck vehicle
driving in reverse and then stopping, and its dump body raising, tilting back, and
dumping a full load of miniature canisters.

4. Another sequence depicts an assembled Steel Tec motorized helicopter
hovering, with propellers and rear rotors spinning, then ascending. The audio
portion simulates the sound of a helicopter in flight, including the sound of
propellers spinning.

E. Exhibit E, a product package, depicts, inter alia, nine models, including the
Steel Tec motorized helicopter, Formula 1 race car, Off Road Super Sport vehicle,
and Sand Buggy vehicle. The nine models appear side-by-side in two rows in a
large photograph, which makes up more than two-thirds of the front panel of the
package. Copy on the package states:

1. "ROAD & AIR VEHICLES PLUS WALKING ROBOT" [appears on 5 of
6 panels];

2. "BATTERY POWERED MOTOR INCLUDED" [appears on 5 of 6 panels];
and,

3. "Requires 2 AA Alkaline Batteries (Not Included)" [appears on front panel].

F. Exhibit F, a product package, depicts, inter alia, three Harley-Davidson®
motorcycles, including the Electra Glide. Copy on the package states:

1. "BATTERY POWERED MOTOR INCLUDED" [appears on 5 of 6 panels];

2. "BATTERY POWERED MOTOR INCLUDED" [appears on front panel
directly above circle containing a photograph of a motor, a battery holder, and
batteries];

3. "Requires 2 AA Alkaline Batteries (Not Included)" [appears on front panel];
and,

4. "THE HARLEY-DAVIDSON® MOTORCYCLES IN THIS SET
OPERATE ON 2-AA ALKALINE BATTERIES (NOT INCLUDED)" [appears on
back panel].

G. Exhibit G, a product package, depicts, inter alia, nine models, including the
Steel Tec Dozer and Dump Truck vehicles. Copy on the package states:

1. "HEAVY MACHINERY PLUS WALKING DINOSAUR" [appears on 5 of
6 panels];

2. "BATTERY POWERED MOTOR INCLUDED" [appears on 5 of 6 panels];

3. "Requires 2 AA Alkaline Batteries (Not Included)" [appears on front panel];
and,

4. "THE STEEL TEC™ VEHICLES IN THIS SET OPERATE ON 2-AA
ALKALINE BATTERIES (NOT INCLUDED)" [appears on back panel].
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PAR. 5. Through the use of the statements and depictions
contained in the advertisements and on the packages referred to in
paragraph four, including but not necessarily limited to the
advertisements and packages attached as Exhibits A-G, respondents
have represented, directly or by implication, that the demonstrations
in the television advertisements of the Steel Tec:

A. Motorized helicopter hovering, with propellers and rear rotors
spinning, then ascending;

B. Formula 1 race car driving at a rapid pace on a grated surface;

C. Off Road Super Sport vehicle peeling out from a pile of dirt or
sand and then driving and bounding over a dirt or sand covered
surface;

D. Sand Buggy vehicle peeling out from a pile of dirt or sand and
then driving over a dirt or sand covered surface, leaving a cloud of
dust behind;

E. Harley-Davidson® Electra Glide motorcycle peeling out from
a pile of dirt or sand, and driving on two wheels on a dirt or sand
covered surface;

F. Hypersonic Fighter plane flying;

G. Dozer vehicle driving forward and pushing a pile of dirt or
sand on a dirt or sand covered surface; and,

H. Dump Truck vehicle driving in reverse and then stopping, and
its dump body raising, tilting back, and dumping a full load of
miniature canisters

were unaltered and the results shown accurately represent the
performance of the actual, unaltered Steel Tec motorized helicopter,
Formula 1 race car, Off Road Super Sport vehicle, Sand Buggy
vehicle, Harley-Davidson® Electra Glide motorcycle, Hypersonic
Fighter plane, Dozer vehicle, and Dump Truck vehicle toys under the
depicted conditions.

PAR. 6. In truth and in fact, the demonstrations in the television
advertisements of the Steel Tec:

A. Motorized helicopter hovering, with propellers and rear rotors
spinning, then ascending;
B. Formula 1 race car driving at a rapid pace on a grated surface;
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C. Off Road Super Sport vehicle peeling out from a pile of dirt or
sand and then driving and bounding over a dirt or sand covered
surface;

D. Sand Buggy vehicle peeling out from a pile of dirt or sand and
then driving over a dirt or sand covered surface, leaving a cloud of
dust behind;

E. Harley-Davidson® Electra Glide motorcycle peeling out from
a pile of dirt or sand, and driving on two wheels on a dirt or sand
covered surface;

F. Hypersonic Fighter plane flying;

G. Dozer vehicle driving forward and pushing a pile of dirt or
sand on a dirt or sand covered surface; and,

H. Dump Truck vehicle driving in reverse and then stopping, and
its dump body raising, tilting back, and dumping a full load of
miniature canisters

were not unaltered and the results shown did not accurately represent
the performance of actual, unaltered Steel Tec motorized helicopter,
Formula 1 race car, Off Road Super Sport vehicle, Sand Buggy
vehicle, Harley-Davidson® Electra Glide motorcycle, Hypersonic
Fighter plane, Dozer vehicle, and Dump Truck vehicle toys under the
depicted conditions. Among other things, the Steel Tec:

1. Motorized helicopter was suspended in the air from
monofilament wire and was moved by humans off camera to create
the effects of hovering and ascending, and the propellers and rear
rotors were spun manually by humans off camera to create the effect
of motorized spinning;

2. Formula 1 race car was pulled and guided in a straight line by
a monofilament wire held by humans off camera to create the effect
of driving at a rapid pace on a grated surface;

3. Off Road Super Sport vehicle was pulled and guided by a
monofilament wire held by humans off camera to create the effects
of peeling out from a pile of dirt or sand, and driving and bounding
over a dirt or sand covered surface;

4. Sand Buggy vehicle was pulled and guided by a monofilament
wire operated by humans off camera to create the effects of peeling
out from a pile of dirt ar sand and driving over a dirt or sand covered
surface;
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5. Harley-Davidson® Electra Glide motorcycle was moved along
the dirt or sand covered surface by humans off camera using a black
tube connected to the side of the vehicle and recessed out of view
from the camera to create the effects of peeling out and driving on a
dirt or sand covered surface;

6. Hypersonic Fighter plane was moved along a horizontally
suspended monofilament wire by humans off camera to create the
effect of flying;

7. Dozer vehicle was pulled and guided by a monofilament wire
held by humans off camera to create the effects of pushing a pile of
dirt or sand and driving over a dirt or sand covered surface; and,

8. Dump Truck vehicle was pulled and guided by a monofilament
wire held by humans off camera to create the effects of driving in
reverse and stopping, and the dump body was pulled upward by a
monofilament wire held by humans off camera to create the effect of
dumping a load of miniature canisters.

Therefore, the representations set forth in paragraph five were, and
are, false and misleading.

PAR. 7. Through the use of the statements and depictions
contained in the advertisements and on the packages referred to in
paragraph four, including but not necessarily limited to the
advertisements and packages attached as Exhibits A-G, respondents
‘have represented, directly or by implication, that the Steel Tec:

A. Motorized helicopter can hover and ascend, and its propellers
and rotors can spin in a sustained manner without human assistance;

B. Formula 1 race car can drive at a rapid pace in a sustained and
directed manner without human assistance;

C. Off Road Super Sport vehicle can peel out from a pile of dirt
or sand and drive and bound over a dirt or sand covered surface in a

“sustained and directed manner without human assistance;

D. Sand Buggy vehicle can peel out from a pile of dirt or sand
and drive on a dirt or sand covered surface in a sustained and directed
manner without human assistance;

E. Harley-Davidson® Electra Glide motorcycle can peel out from
a pile of dirt or sand and drive on a dirt or sand covered surface in a
sustained and directed manner without human assistance;

F. Hypersonic Fighter plane can fly in a sustained and directed
manner without human assistance;
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G. Dozer vehicle can push dirt or sand and drive on a dirt or sand
covered surface in a sustained and directed manner without human
assistance; and,

H. Dump Truck vehicle can drive in reverse, stop, raise the dump
body, tilt it back, and then dump its load without human assistance.

PAR. 8. In truth and in fact, the Steel Tec:

A. Motorized helicopter cannot hover and ascend, and its
propellers and rotors cannot spin in a sustained manner without
human assistance;

B. Formula 1 race car cannot drive at a rapid pace in a sustained
and directed manner without human assistance;

C. Off Road Super Sport vehicle cannot peel out from a pile of
dirt or sand and drive and bound over a dirt or sand covered surface
in a sustained and directed manner without human assistance;

D. Sand Buggy vehicle cannot peel out from a pile of dirt or sand
and drive on a dirt or sand covered surface in a sustained and directed
manner without human assistance;

E. Harley-Davidson® Electra Glide motorcycle cannot peel out
from a pile of dirt or sand and drive on a dirt or sand covered surface
in a sustained and directed manner without human assistance;

F. Hypersonic Fighter plane cannot fly in a sustained and directed
manner without human assistance;

G. Dozer vehicle cannot push dirt or sand and drive on a dirt or
sand covered surface in a sustained and directed manner without
human assistance; and,

H. Dump Truck vehicle cannot drive in reverse, stop, raise the
dump body, tilt it back, and then dump its load without human
assistance.

Therefore, the representations set forth in paragraph seven were, and
are, false and misleading.

PAR. 9. Through the use of the statements and depictions
contained in the advertisements and on the packages referred to in
paragraph four, including but not necessarily limited to the
advertisements and packages attached as Exhibits A-G, respondents
have represented, directly or by implication, that the Steel Tec Off
Road Super Sport vehicle, Sand Buggy vehicle, Harley-Davidson®
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Electra Glide motorcycle, Dozer vehicle, and Dump Truck vehicle
can be used on dirt, sand, and similar surfaces.

PAR. 10. In truth and in fact, the Steel Tec Off Road Super Sport
vehicle, Sand Buggy vehicle, Harley-Davidson® Electra Glide
motorcycle, Dozer vehicle, and Dump Truck vehicle cannot be used
on dirt, sand, and similar surfaces. The "Helpful Hints Manual"
accompanying these products states, "OPERATE YOUR VEHICLE ON A
SMOOTH, DRY SURFACE ONLY. NEVER OPERATE YOUR VEHICLE ON
GRASS, DIRT, SAND, CARPET OR WATER AS THIS MAY RESULT IN
DAMAGE TO YOUR VEHICLE." Therefore, the representation set forth
in paragraph nine was, and is, false and misleading.

PAR. 11. Respondents have disseminated or have caused to be
disseminated packages for Steel Tec toys, including but not
necessarily limited to the attached Exhibits E-G. These packages
contain the following statements and depictions:

A. Exhibit E depicts, inter alia, nine models, including the Steel
Tec motorized helicopter, Formula 1 race car, Off Road Super Sport
vehicle, and Sand Buggy vehicle. The nine models appear side-by-
side in two rows in a large photograph, which makes up more than
two-thirds of the front panel of the package. Copy on the package
states:

1. "ROAD & AIR VEHICLES PLUS WALKING ROBOT" [appears on 5 of
6 panels];

2. "BUILD 9 OR MORE MODELS INDIVIDUALLY WITH THIS SET"
[appears on 5 of 6 panels];

3."348 PARTS" [appears in large red letters inside of a yellow hexagon with
a red border on 5 of 6 panels]; and,

4. "ANY ONE OF THE STYLES SHOWN CAN BE BUILT ONE AT A
TIME" [appears on back panel, above photographs of 9 individual packages of toys
and 5 packages of sets of toys].

B. Exhibit F depicts, inter alia, three Harley-Davidson®
motorcycles, including the Electra Glide. The three models appear
side-by-side in a large photograph, which makes up more than two-
thirds of the front panel of the package. Copy on the package states:

1. "BUILD 3 OR MORE MOTORCYCLES INDIVIDUALLY WITH THIS
SET" [appears on 5 of 6 panels; photograph of 3 motorcycles side-by-side appears
on 3 of 6 panels];

2."545 PARTS" [appears in large red block letters inside of a yellow hexagon
with a red border on 5 of 6 panels]; and,
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3. "THE HARLEY-DAVIDSON® MOTORCYCLES IN THIS SET
OPERATE ON 2-AA ALKALINE BATTERIES (NOT INCLUDED)" [appears on
back panel].

C. Exhibit G depicts, inter alia, nine models, including the Steel
Tec Dozer and Dump Truck vehicles. The nine models appear side-
by-side in a large photograph, which makes up more than two-thirds
of the front panel of the package. Copy on the package states:

1."HEAVY MACHINERY PLUS WALKING DINOSAUR" [appears on 5 of
6 panels];

2. "BUILD 9 OR MORE MODELS INDIVIDUALLY WITH THIS SET"
[appears on 5 of 6 panels];

3."390 PARTS" [appears in large red block letters inside of a yellow hexagon
with a red border on 5 of 6 panels]; and,

4. "THE STEEL TEC™ VEHICLES IN THIS SET OPERATE ON 2-AA
ALKALINE BATTERIES (NOT INCLUDED)" [appears on back panel].

PAR. 12. Through the use of the statements and depictions
contained on the packages of the Steel Tec toys referred to in
paragraph eleven, including but not necessarily limited to the
packages attached as Exhibits E-G, respondents have represented,
directly or by implication, that each package contains the number of
parts required to build the number of vehicles depicted on the
package at the same time.

PAR. 13. In truth and in fact, the packages do not contain the
number of parts required to build the number of vehicles depicted on
the package at the same time. Each package contains enough parts
to build a single vehicle at one time. Therefore, the representation set
forth in paragraph twelve was, and is, false and misleading.

PAR. 14. The acts and practices of respondents as alleged in this
complaint constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or
affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act.
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